On _______________ the Plaintiff ______________ purchased a (year) (vehicle) from Defendant ________________ at a cost of _____________.  Sales Agreement 1.  Upon information and belief the owner of Defendant is an adult individual named Defendant ____________.   At the time of purchase the Plaintiff was informed by the Defendant the vehicle was roadworthy and in good working condition including a history of no accidents.  At the time of purchase it was represented the vehicle passed/will pass state safety inspection.  At the time of purchase the Plaintiff was not provided any documentation with regard to the transaction including neither the sales agreement nor the finance agreement.  The Plaintiff received at the time of purchase a temporary pink registration sheet only.  The vehicle was purchased with a Defendant 30 day warranty covering ____________. At the time of purchase the Defendant provided the Plaintiff a vehicle service contract with a third party warranty company providing total loss protection.  Service contract 2.   The ______ Carfax vehicle report indicates the vehicle was involved in an accident in _______ involving front, left rear and left side impact damage prior to the Plaintiff’s purchase/during the period of time the vehicle was serviced by the Defendant.  Within the 30 day date of purchase the Plaintiff vehicle experienced the following problems in which the vendor who prepared the estimate and/or performed the work including the repair/replacement cost is indicated below:

a. Firestone Auto Care on March 7, 2014 at a cost of $202.24 for the engine light going on.  Receipt 3.

b. Bob’s Repair Shop on March 4, 2014 at a cost of $287.21 for spark plugs and oil.

c. Bob’s Repair Shop on March 5, 2014 at a cost of $225.00 to replace spark plugs.

d. Bob’s Repair Shop on April 11, 2014 at a cost of $1015.69 to replace brakes and rotors.  Bob’s Repair Shop bills collectively Receipt 4.

e. Affidavit of Repairman.  Exhibit 5.

At the time of purchase the engine light was on.  Within the 30 day purchase/warranty period the Plaintiff experienced mechanical problems with the vehicle including (cracked frame, vehicle unable to pass state inspection, engine, transmission, as applicable) covered by the warranty.  Within the warranty period a Defendant representative drove with the Plaintiff to ____________ to have the vehicle inspected.  The vehicle was at ______________ from _________ through ___________.  Upon completion of the inspection by ______________ the Defendant agent who drove with the Plaintiff to ___________________ would not inform the Plaintiff of what the problems were with the vehicle. Within the 10 day date of purchase and 30 day warranty periods the Plaintiff reported these problems to the dealer.  The Plaintiff unsuccessfully attempted to have the Defendant repair the vehicle within the warranty period but the Defendant refused.  The Defendant dealer alleged repaired the vehicle after it was returned to the dealer by the Plaintiff.   On ___________ the Plaintiff had the vehicle inspected at ____________________ to correct the problems which became evident within the 30 day warranty period.  Receipt exhibit 2.  The actual condition of the vehicle was misrepresented by the Defendants as the vehicle was neither in good condition nor road worthy.  The Pennsylvania Automotive Industry Trade Practices Regulations, 37 Pa. Code Section 301, regulates automobile dealer unfair and deceptive acts and practices.  As such the Defendant made false and misleading representations in contravention of the Pennsylvania Motor Vehicle Dealer and Repair Shop Statute, 37 Pa. Code 301.2(4) through (6) requiring the sale of a motor vehicle as was advertised or otherwise represented.  The Federal Trade Commission makes it unlawful to misrepresent the mechanical condition of a used vehicle.  Used Motor Vehicle Trade Regulation Rule, 16 CFR Part 455.1(a)(1).  The Plaintiff signed an as-is agreement with a written warning the vehicle “may not be safe for highway driving” which is contrary to the Defendant good condition representation made to the Plaintiff.  Commonwealth of Pennsylvania vehicle inspection requires vehicles pass an annual safety inspection in that the vehicle is in such condition operation of the vehicle is not considered hazardous.  Motor Vehicle Annual Safety Inspection, Title 75, Section 4702(a).   Specifically, the Defendant violated 301.2(5) which requires the seller to disclose to the buyer if a vehicle cannot pass State inspection, the engine or transmission requires replacement, or the vehicle frame is bent or cracked.  The $__________ valuation for the vehicle was based upon a vehicle which was safe for driving and would pass inspection.  The valuation was not based upon the actual condition of the vehicle and the fact the vehicle unlawfully passed inspection.  The Defendant allowed the Plaintiff to drive off Defendant’s car lot with the knowledge the Plaintiff was at risk for potential catastrophe because the vehicle was not safe for driving.  The Defendants attempt to be held harmless by the Plaintiff is therefore void as unconscionable and against public policy.  The Defendants’ attempt to exclude all warranties is in violation of 13 Pa. C.S.A. Section 2316 requiring any ‘as is’ expression to be conspicuous.  37 Pa. Code Section 301.4 titled motor vehicle dealer general provisions also requires a conspicuous as-is disclaimer which requires a larger font than the surrounding sales agreement wording font and requires the as-is paragraph be bold and in large cap.  The Plaintiff argues the ‘as is’ indication on the Defendant sales agreement is in violation of this conspicuous requirement.  Additionally, the sales agreement ‘as is’ clause is in violation of Section 301.4(a) (9) of the supra dealer and repair shop statute as the ‘as is’ clause does not contain the entirety of the language required as part of a legally binding ‘as is’ clause as stated in the statute.   A vehicle purchased ‘as is’ does not obviate the dealer 37 Pa. Code 301.2 (5) disclosure requirements.  A vehicle purchased ‘as is’ may not contradict Defendants representation the vehicle was roadworthy and in good working condition.   Plaintiff argues the Defendant negligent and /or intentional misrepresentation for failure to disclose known material defects with regard to the vehicle.  This misrepresentation is a violation of UCC Section 1-302(a) requiring seller good faith duty to disclose the true and accurate condition of the vehicle at the time of sale and a breach of the UCC Section 2-315 implied warranty of fitness for a particular purpose when in fact the vehicle proved to be unsound, unfit, and unsuited for its intended purpose of daily commuting.  The Plaintiff further argues the purchased vehicle violates the Philadelphia Used Car Lemon Law requiring the Defendant repair the vehicle at their own expense if the vehicle is returned within 10 days of purchase or refund the Plaintiff’s money.  Plaintiff argues the Defendant violated 37 Pa. Code Section 301.5 titled Repair Shop General Provisions (1) (iii) alleging repairs have been performed on the vehicle when in fact the repairs have not been made.   The Plaintiff argues Defendant fraud and/or negligence in not informing the Plaintiff of the true and accurate condition of the vehicle after it was inspected by Defendant or Defendant’s agent (within the warranty period) and unlawfully passing the vehicle for inspection.  Title 75, Section 4702.1.  Limited liability of inspection station or mechanic.  Plaintiff alleges breach of contract in not honoring the dealer warranty as a head gasket repair is part of the covered powertrain.  The Defendant provided the third party warranty to the Plaintiff as a guise knowing the warranty would never cover the Plaintiff’s vehicle because the vehicle required service at the time of purchase.  The Plaintiff seeks actual damages of $___________ as the cost of the vehicle or, in the alternative, $____________ as the cost to repair the vehicle and $______ for tax and title totaling $__________.  Exhibit 8.  Plaintiff seeks 73 P.S. Section 201-9.2(a) statutory treble damages and attorney’s fees of $12,000.00 as a violation of 37 Pa. Code 301.5 automobile dealer general provisions is an unfair or deceptive act or practice and a violation of the Pennsylvania Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law.  Plaintiff alleges a violation of the UTPCPL directly pursuant to 73 P.S. Section 201-2 (iii) causing likelihood of confusion as to the certification of goods, (v) goods having characteristics or of a particular standard of which they are not,  (ix) advertising goods with intent not to sell them as advertised, (xiv) failure to comply with the terms of any written warranty given to the buyer at the time of sale and (xxi) engaging in fraudulent or deceptive conduct which creates a likelihood of confusion or of misunderstanding.  The Plaintiff also alleges a violation of the Motor Vehicle Sales Finance Act, 12 Pa. C.S. A. Section 6201 et seq requiring the seller to provide to the buyer a copy of the retail installment contract and 301.4(a) supra of the Dealer and Repair shop statute.  Failure to provide this contract also provides the buyer with treble damages pursuant to 12 Pa. C. S A. Section 6222.  Plaintiff avers the Defendant ____________ acted through its owner _______ who was acting in his individual capacity and/or as a duly authorized agent for its principal____________.  Defendants are principals and agents and alter egos of each other and are jointly and severally liable for plaintiff’s claims asserted herein.      
